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Dear Mr. Shutler:
We have reviewed the application form of Freedom 2000, LLC for a certificate to operate as a solid waste collection company in Point Roberts, Washington.  We offer the following comments.
Point Roberts is a unique area in Washington State.  It is geographically isolated from the mainland of Washington State, and the primary transportation mode to the mainland is through Canada via two border crossings.  As of the U.S. census in 2000, Point Roberts had 1,820 housing units with only approximately one third occupied by full time residents of Point Roberts.   The total area of Point Roberts is about five square miles.  This presents some interesting challenges when considering the design of an effective solid waste program for the area.
Dropoff of recyclables is currently available in Point Roberts, as provided by Point Recycling and Refuse.  When Point Recycling and Refuse discontinued curbside recycling earlier this year, we received 20 letters from Point Roberts residents.  Of those, 10 supported a dropoff system of recycling, 2 supported reinstating curbside, and 8 were unclear as to a preferred recycling system, but seemed to be in support of Point Recycling and Refuse.
It is part of the Department of Ecology’s mission to encourage recycling. However, the primary responsibility for solid waste management and the development and implementation of effective waste reduction and source separation strategies is assigned to county and city governments  (RCW 70.95.010(6)(c)).
Ecology would like to see an ongoing, sustainable recycling program readily available to all residents to divert recyclables in an environmentally sound manner.  If a new program is to be established, it should show that it will not undermine other solid waste programs in the area.  We are concerned with starts and stops of new or existing programs, as programs that discontinue or endure drastic changes can hurt diversion rates.  However, we recognize that Whatcom County is in the best position to determine whether curbside collection, dropbox collection, or another method of residential recycling is best in Point Roberts, and we support that local decision making.  We encourage the commission to work directly with Whatcom County to make sure any proposed recycling systems are consistent with the Whatcom County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management plan.
Please note that any recyclables collected should be on the designated recyclables list of the county Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan, and the materials should go to true recycling end markets.  A potential collector of recyclables should have knowledge of the markets of these recyclables, and be able to ensure a sustainable system.  If a curbside recycler uses their own facility to take materials to, that recycler will need to follow WAC 173-350-310. Additionally, it is the position of the Department of Ecology that the use of materials as alternative daily landfill cover or industrial waste stabilizer does not qualify as recycling.  This has been an issue raised previously in the area.
Directly regarding Freedom 2000, LLC, we notice that David Gallatly is listed as the owner and operator.  We believe this is the same David Gallatly who is a business partner of Ron Calder in the company J-Man Trucking (UBI number 602378777).  
Though there is no official licensure of a company by the name of Lite Weight Recyclers, David Gellatly is the contact named for Lite Weight Recyclers in a 2008 article titled “It’s time for some serious trash talking” by Meg Olson in the All Point Bulletin.  The article states that “Gallatly and his company provides cost-effective recycling options for the community and hopes to continue to do so.”  The article also says that Lite Weight Recyclers is “prepared to apply to be the designated local waste hauler if the position becomes available, and they would also be interested in leasing and operating the transfer station.”  
On August 4, 2008, the Department of Ecology received a complaint reporting Lite Weight Recyclers had advertised free recycling of old appliances (refrigerators) for contribution to the local food bank, but that the collected items not being properly recycled.  Charles Sullivan of the Whatcom County Health Department initiated an investigation into allegations that these materials were accumulating in a nearby gravel pit.
Ecology followed up with Mr. Sullivan and tracked his progress on this case.  According to Mr. Sullivan’s reports, he had contact with Ron Calder as a representative of Lite Weight Recyclers and visited the reported site, which was on private property.  The property contained a large pile of metal scrap including appliances, scrap steel and a few empty oil tanks, among other solid waste.  By the end of August, the site had been cleared of the items Mr. Sullivan had requested Mr. Calder to remove.  In October, the receipts for the recycled items were FAXed to Mr. Sullivan, showing final destinations in Canada.
When Mr. Sullivan had met Mr. Calder at the site at the end of August to verify the cleanup, Mr. Sullivan advised Mr. Calder of various requirements of hauling and processing solid waste and recyclables.  This included registering with the Department of Ecology as a transporter of recyclables.
On September 27, Lite Weight Recyclers received a letter and registration form from the Department of Ecology asking the company to register as a transporter of recyclables if they are indeed transporting recyclables.  We have given them 30 calendar days to respond, and as of October 14, we have not received registration nor communication from Ron Calder or David Gallatly.   
Ecology believes it may be premature to make a decision on a new curbside collector of recyclables when it isn’t clear yet why the prior system failed.  Due to the unique demographics and geography of Point Roberts, traditional means of solid waste management may not be the most efficient or effective.  Ideally, Whatcom County should be allowed time to work out a solution in cooperation with the Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC), and this petition could be heard in context with those plans.  That decision should be reflected in the Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan, if it isn’t already addressed.
Thank you for this opportunity to comment.  If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me at (425) 649-7056 or dwad461@ecy.wa.gov. 
Sincerely,
Diana Wadley
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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